COUNTY OF HILLSDALE
a body corporate of the State of Michigan,
HILLSDALE COUNTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY,
HILLSDALE COUNTY CLERK,
HILLSDALE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS,
HILLSDALE COUNTY TREASURER,
HILLSDALE COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER,
and the
HILLSDALE COUNTY SHERIFF

- and -

SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, LOCAL 517M

January 1, 2007 - December 31, 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Article 1, Purpose and Intent
Article 2, Recognition
Article 3, Non-Discrimination
Article 4, Union Security
Article 5, Grievance Procedure
Article 6, Arbitration
Article 7, Election of Remedies Clause
Article 8, Management Rights Clause
Article 9, Stewards
Article 10, Seniority
Article 11, Layoff and Recall
Article 12, Leave Provisions
Article 13, Paid Leaves
Article 14, Sick Leave and Medical Leave
Article 15, Discharge & Discipline
Article 16, Hours of Employment
Article 17, Holidays
Article 18, Vacation
Article 19, Travel Pay
Article 20, Insurance
Article 21, Longevity Pay
Article 22, Wages and Service Classifications
Article 23, General Provisions
Article 24, Retirement

AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into this _____ day of _______, 2008, A.D., and effective when signed by all parties, between the County of Hillsdale, a body corporate of the State of Michigan, the Hillsdale County Prosecuting Attorney, the Hillsdale County Clerk, the Hillsdale County Register of Deeds, the Hillsdale County Treasurer, the Hillsdale County Drain Commissioner, and the Hillsdale County Sheriff, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer," and Service Employees International Union, Local 517M, hereinafter referred to as the "Union."

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE AND INTENT

<u>Section A</u>. The general purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the wages, hours, terms, and conditions of employment which shall prevail for the duration of this Agreement and to promote orderly and peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the Employer, the employees, and the Union.

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

<u>Section A.</u> The Employer, pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of the MCLA 423.201 et seq., as amended, hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment for all employees of the Employer included in the bargaining unit hereinafter described:

All full-time and regular part-time technical, office, paraprofessional and service employees of Hillsdale County excluding elected officials, administrators, supervisors as defined by the act, confidential employees, other Union employees employed by the County and casual/contractual employees specifically excluding, however, the following: Chief Assistant Prosecuting Attorney, all Assistant Prosecuting Attorneys, Chief Deputy of Hillsdale County Clerk, Chief Deputy of Hillsdale County Register of Deeds, Chief Deputy of Hillsdale County Treasurer, the Sheriff's Secretary, Deputy Drain Commissioner, the Executive Secretary to the Board of Commissioners, the Deputy Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, and the Hillsdale County Court Employees.

Section B. Definitions: The terms "employee" and "employees" when used in this Agreement shall refer to and include only those full-time employees and regular part-time employees who have completed their probationary periods as set forth in this Agreement and who are employed by the Employer in the collective bargaining unit set forth in Section A. For purposes of this Agreement the following definitions are applicable:

1. (a) <u>Full-Time Employee</u>: A full-time employee is an employee who is working the official workweek for a minimum of 37-1/2 hours per week on a regular schedule at a job classified by the Employer as regular and who has completed his/her probationary period.

- 2. <u>Part-Time Employee</u>: A part-time employee is an employee who is scheduled to work less than 37-1/2 hours per week but a minimum of 16 hours per week on a regular schedule at a job classified by the Employer as regular and who has completed his/her probationary period. The benefits for part-time employees will be prorated. The time to complete probation for part-time employees is set at 640 hours of paid time.
- 3. <u>Supervisor/Administrator</u>: A Supervisor/Administrator is any person with the authority to hire, transfer, layoff, discharge, promote, or effectively discipline employees or who has the responsibility to direct employees or effectively recommend such action if, in connection with the foregoing, the exercise of such authority or responsibility is not a mere routine or clerical act but requires the use of independent judgment and skill.
- 4. <u>Employer</u>: "Employer" shall mean the Hillsdale County Board of Commissioners and all elected officials referred to in the preamble of this Agreement.

<u>Section C.</u> <u>Temporary Employees</u>: Temporary Employees may be hired from time to time to supplement the regular work force. When these employees are to be hired, the Union will be notified of the number and given a description of the duties to be performed and an estimate of the length of time of the employment to finish said duties. In no event will the time of employment exceed 640 hours of work in a given department. If the term of employment goes beyond 640 hours of work in a given department, the employee will be part of the bargaining unit and will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Employer agrees that the exercise of this provision shall not be abused nor used to displace or replace bargaining unit employees.

ARTICLE 3 - NON-DISCRIMINATION

<u>Section A.</u> The parties shall not discriminate predicated upon age, height, weight, religion, physical handicap, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, political or union affiliation, or sexual preference, as required by law. All references to employees in this Agreement designates both sexes and wherever the male or female gender is used, it shall be construed to include male and female employees.

ARTICLE 4 - UNION SECURITY

Section A. Agency Shop: It is the intent of this Agreement to make a legal provision for the voluntary association by all the members of the bargaining unit with the Union and for the voluntary payment by all members of the bargaining unit of a representation fee. Within 31 days after the execution of this Agreement or the completion of an employee's probationary period, whichever is later, all employees included in the collective bargaining unit shall either become members of the Union and pay to the Union the periodic monthly dues and initiation fees uniformly required of all Union members, or pay to the Union a Service Fee equal to the costs of negotiating and administering this Agreement which shall not exceed the Union's periodic monthly dues.

In the event an employee within the aforementioned time shall fail to become a member of the Union and pay the monthly dues and initiation fees uniformly required of all Union members or continue to pay said dues or pay the Union the Service Fee hereinbefore mentioned, the Union shall notify the Employer and the employee that the Union will seek to have the employee discharged. If the employee shall fail for thirty (30) days after the aforesaid notice to pay the dues or fees aforementioned, the Employer shall discharge said employee.

Section B. <u>Union Membership</u>: Membership in the Union is not compulsory and is a matter separate, distinct, and apart from an employee's obligation to share equally the costs of administering and negotiating this Agreement. All employees have the right to join, not join, maintain, or drop their membership in the Union at any time after this contract or any extension thereof expires. The Union recognizes, however, that it is required under this Agreement to represent all employees included within the collective bargaining unit set forth in the Agreement without regard to whether or not the employee is a member of the Union.

Section C. Payroll Deduction for Union Dues or Service Fees:

- 1. During the life of this Agreement, the Employer agrees to deduct periodic monthly Union membership dues and initiation fees uniformly levied in accordance with the Constitution and By-Laws of the Union or the Service Fee equivalent to the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of all Union members from each employee covered by this Agreement who executes and files with the Employer a proper check off authorization form.
- 2. The employee designated by the County Clerk to perform the payroll function will notify, in writing, the Union Chief Steward of any new hires when they are added to the payroll, and when they have reached 640 hours of paid time with the County so that the Union representative may obtain necessary check-off and Union authorization cards which are to be filed with the County Clerk not sooner than 30 days prior to the completion of the employee's probationary period.
- 3. Deductions shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of the written authorization form, together with the provisions of this Section.
- 4. A properly executed copy of the written authorization form for each employee for whom Union periodic membership dues and initiation fees or the Service Fee referred to in Section A are to be deducted hereunder shall be delivered to the Hillsdale County Clerk before any payroll deductions are made. Deductions shall be made thereafter only under the written authorization form which has been properly executed and is in effect. Any authorization form which lacks the employee's signature will be returned to the Union by the Hillsdale County Clerk.
- 5. All authorizations filed with the Hillsdale County Clerk's Office prior to the fifteenth (15th) of the month shall become effective the first (15th) day of the following month provided the employee has sufficient net earnings to cover the dues and/or initiation fee or, if applicable, the Service Fee equivalent. An authorization filed thereafter shall become effective on the first (1st) day of the second (2nd) month following the filing of

- the authorization. Deductions for any calendar month shall be remitted to the Union not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the following month.
- 6. In cases in which a deduction is made which is not in conformity with the Union's Constitution and By-Laws, refunds to the employee will be made by the Union.
- 7. The Union shall notify the Hillsdale County Clerk in writing of the proper amount of Union membership dues and initiation fees or the Service Fee equivalent and any subsequent changes in such amounts. The Employer agrees to furnish the Union a monthly record of those employees from whom deductions have been made, together with the amount deducted for each employee including new employees.
- 8. If a dispute arises as to whether or not an employee has properly executed or properly revoked a written check off authorization form, no further deductions will be made until the matter is resolved.
- 9. The Employer shall not be responsible for dues, initiation fees, or payment of the service fee equivalent after an employee's employment relationship has been terminated and said employee no longer has any funds coming from the County.
- 10. The Employer shall not be liable to the Union or its members for any dues, initiation fees, or service fees once such sums have been remitted to the Union and further, shall not be liable if such sums are lost when remitted by United States Mail.
- Section D. Probationary Employees: After 10-1-91 any employee hired who is on probation shall not have any rights under this Agreement nor any fringe benefits, provided, however, that said employee shall be paid according to the wage scale attached hereto for regular and overtime hours.
- Section E. Hold Harmless: The Union agrees to indemnify, defend, and save the Employer and any and all public officials, officers, and employees of Hillsdale County harmless against any and all claims, suits or other forms of liability arising out of the deduction of initiation fees, dues, or service fees provided herein or by reason of action taken by the Employer pursuant to Section C. Additionally, the Union agrees to completely indemnify the Employer for any claims, suits, or other forms of liability including actual attorney fees and expenses arising as a result of the discharge of an employee under the terms of Section A.
- Section F. During the term of this Agreement, the Employer will honor a written authorization signed by any employee for the deduction of voluntary Committee on Political Education (COPE) and/or SEIU Local 517M Political Action Committee contributions to the Union. Such written authorizations shall be in a form consistent with Federal Law and this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the standard form submitted to the Employer by the Union.

The Union shall notify the Employer, in writing, of the amount of voluntary COPE contributions to be remitted to the Union. The Employer will cause such voluntary contributions to be remitted

at the same time all other monthly remittances are forwarded to the Union, together with a written statement of the names of the employees from whom deductions were made.

ARTICLE 5 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

<u>Section A.</u> <u>Definition of Grievance</u>: For purposes of this Agreement, a grievance shall be defined as a complaint by an employee covered by this Agreement or the Union concerning the application and interpretation of a specific provision or provisions of this Agreement as written.

Section B. Grievance Procedure: All grievances shall be processed in the following manner:

Step One. Informal Procedure: An employee with a complaint shall, within ten (10) working days of the date of the occurrence which gave rise to the complaint or within ten (10) working days of the date the employee first reasonably should have known of the events which gave rise to the complaint, discuss it with his immediate supervisor with the object of resolving the matter informally. If requested, the Steward may be present.

Step Two. Formal Procedure: If the complaint is not satisfactorily resolved at the verbal step, it shall be reduced to writing, setting forth the facts and specific provision or provisions of this Agreement alleged to have been violated or any other provisions that may apply, signed by the aggrieved employee, and, within five (5) working days following the verbal discussion, presented to the employee's General Supervisor. The General Supervisor shall place his/her written disposition and explanation upon the grievance and return it to the Steward or employee within five (5) working days after receipt of the written grievance.

Step Three. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step 2, the grievant may within five (5) working days after receipt of the Department Head's written answer in Step 2, request, in writing, a meeting to be scheduled between the Department Head, grievant and the Union to discuss the grievance. Either party may have non-employee representatives in attendance. Within five (5) working days after the meeting between the Department Head, Grievant, and the Union, the Department Head shall furnish his written answer to the Union, Steward and/or Union representative. Should the Department Head fail to furnish a written answer within the five (5) working days, the grievance shall advance to the next Step and be processed in accordance with Step 4 of the procedure.

Step Four. If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step 3 of the grievance procedure, the Grievant may, within five (5) working days after receipt of the written answer in Step 3, or the time when the answer should have been received, request, in writing, a meeting between the Grievant's Department Head, and the designated committee of the Hillsdale County Board of Commissioners to discuss the grievance. Either party may have non-employee representatives in attendance. The designated committee of the Hillsdale County Board of Commissioners shall answer the grievance after ratification of its decision by the full Board of Hillsdale County Commissioners on or before the fifth working day after the second regularly held Board of Commissioner's meeting following the meeting between the grievant and the County's designated

committee. The County's designated committee shall forward a copy of the disposition of the grievance to the Grievant, Union Steward, Union representative, in accordance with the time limits set forth above.

Section C. Time Limitations: The time limits established in the Grievance Procedure shall be followed by the parties hereto. If the Union fails to present a grievance in time or to advance it to the next Step in a timely manner, it shall be considered withdrawn. If the time procedure is not followed by the Employer, the grievance shall automatically advance to the next Step of the Grievance Procedure. The time limits established in the Grievance Procedure may be extended by mutual agreement, provided the extension is reduced to writing and the period of the extension is specified.

Section D. Time Computation: Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays recognized under this Agreement shall not be counted under the time procedures established in the Grievance Procedure.

<u>Section E.</u> <u>Grievance Form:</u> The grievance concerning the discharge or discipline of an employee or a policy matter of a general concern to the entire bargaining unit may be filed by the Union by submitting the grievance within five (5) days of the incident which gave rise to the grievance at Step 2 of the Grievance Procedure. Discipline, as herein used, shall mean a written warning leading to suspension or loss of benefits.

<u>Section F.</u> <u>Grievance Settlements</u>: The satisfactory settlement of all grievances shall be reduced to writing, written on or attached to each copy of the written grievance, and signed by the representatives involved. Unless otherwise expressly stated, all such settlements shall be without precedent to any other grievance.

ARTICLE 6 - ARBITRATION

Section A. Arbitration Request: In the event the parties are unable to settle the matter at Step 4, the Union or the Employer may request arbitration of any unresolved grievance by giving written notice, including telegraphic, to the Employer or the Union of its intent to arbitrate within thirty (30) working days following receipt of the Employer's disposition in Step 4 of the grievance procedure or upon the Employer's failure to schedule a Step 4 meeting within a reasonable period of time. The time limits for a request for arbitration may be extended by mutual agreement. If written notice of intent to arbitrate is not given timely to the Employer, the grievance shall be considered settled on the basis of the Employer's last position.

<u>Section B.</u> <u>Selection of Arbitrator</u>: If a timely request for arbitration is filed by the Union or the Employer, the parties to this Agreement shall select by random draw, one (1) of the following arbitrators who shall decide the matter, and whose expenses shall be shared equally by the Union and the Employer:

Barry Brown Mark Glazer Anne Patton Each party shall pay the expenses, wages, and any other compensation of its own witnesses and representatives.

Section C. Arbitrator's Powers: The arbitrator's powers shall be limited to the application and interpretation of this Agreement as written, and he shall be governed at all times wholly by the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to alter or modify this Agreement in any respect, directly or indirectly, or any authority to hear or determine any dispute involving the exercise of any of the Employer's inherent rights not specifically limited by the express terms of this Agreement. Nor shall the arbitrator have the power to substitute his judgment for that of the County, or to overrule the County unless the County's judgment or decision is contrary to the express provisions of this Agreement. If the issue of arbitrability is raised, the arbitrator shall only decide the merits of the grievance if arbitrability is affirmatively decided. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon the Union, the Employer and employees in the bargaining unit.

Any grievance relating to the payment of wages shall not be retroactive any earlier than the date the grievance was first presented at Step 1 of the grievance process. No grievance may be considered by the arbitrator if not filed or processed with the time limits set forth in Articles 5 or 6.

ARTICLE 7 - ELECTION OF REMEDIES CLAUSE

<u>Section A.</u> When remedies are available for any complaint and/or grievance of an employee through any administrative or statutory scheme or procedure, such as, but not limited to, a Veteran's Preference Hearing, Civil Rights Hearing, or Department of Labor Hearing, in addition to the grievance procedure provided under this contract, and the employee elects to utilize the statutory or administrative remedy, the Union and the affected employee shall not process the complaint through any grievance procedure provided for in this contract.

ARTICLE 8 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE

The Union recognizes that the Employer reserves, solely and exclusively, all rights to manage and operate the Employer's affairs. All rights, functions, powers, duties and authority which the Employer modified by the express terms of this Agreement are hereby recognized by the Union as having been retained and reserved by the Employer. The Employer reserves and retains, solely and exclusively, all of its inherent and customary rights, powers, functions and authority of management to manage the operation of the Employer's affairs. These rights reserved by and vested in the Employer include, but are not limited to, those provided by constitutional and statutory provisions of law, as well as the right to direct, hire, promote, transfer, assign, retain, layoff, suspend, demote, discharge, or discipline employees; to determine the starting and quitting times of all shifts and the hours to be worked; to determine the location and assignment of facilities and equipment; and to determine the methods, means and personnel required to provide services subject only to the condition that such rights shall not be exercised in any manner inconsistent with this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - STEWARDS

<u>Section A.</u> The Union shall have the right to designate two Stewards and an alternate from the County's seniority list to handle such Union business as may from time to time be delegated to them by the Union. Not more than one Steward may be designated by the Union from anyone County Department, and at no time is the Union authorized to have more than three (3) stewards two (2) regular Stewards and an alternate. The Union shall notify the County, in writing, of the names of the Stewards and alternate, if any.

Stewards will be permitted to leave their work, after obtaining approval from their Department Head and recording their time, for the purpose of adjusting grievances in accordance with the grievance procedure and for reporting to the grievant a change in status of his/her grievance. Permission for stewards to leave their work stations will not be unreasonably withheld. Stewards will report their time to their supervisor upon returning from a grievance discussion.

The privilege of stewards to leave their work during working hours, without loss of pay, is extended with the understanding that the time will be devoted to the prompt handling of grievances and will not be abused, and that they will continue to work at their assigned jobs at all times except when permitted to leave their work to handle grievances. The Union agrees to pay stewards and its employee committee representative for time spent in arbitration while the County will pay them for time spent in contract negotiations.

No person shall be appointed Union Steward from any office where there is not at least one other full time employee who is in the bargaining unit.

Section B. The Union shall have the right to designate up to three employees for the purposes of representing SEIU members for periodic contract negotiations. The Employer agrees to pay those three members at their current hourly rates for time spent during normal working hour negotiations. The Union shall also have the right to designate one representative from each County department as observer-participants. Such observer-participants shall not be paid by the County for time spent in negotiations and may only be released from work with the consent of his/her department head, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE 10 - SENIORITY

Section A. Definition of Seniority: Seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous service with Employer since the employee's last date of hire excepting CETA or JTPA employees whose last date of hire shall be the date when they first went on the County payroll full time after completion of the probationary period. An employee's "last date of hire" shall be the most recent date upon which he first commenced work for Employer. Seniority shall commence only after the employee completes the probationary period hereinafter provided, but upon completion of the probationary period, seniority shall revert back to "last date of hire." Employees who commence work on the same date shall be placed shall be placed on the seniority list in alphabetical order of surnames. The application of seniority shall be limited to the preferences and benefits specifically recited in this Agreement.

Section B. Probationary Period: All new employees shall be considered to be on probation and shall have no seniority for the first 640 hours of paid time following their first day of work for the Employer after which time the employee's seniority shall be retroactive to his last date of hire. Until an employee has completed his probationary period, he may be disciplined, laid off, recalled, terminated, or discharged at the Employer's discretion without regard to the provisions of this Agreement and without recourse to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedures.

<u>Section C</u>. <u>Loss of Seniority</u>: An employee's seniority and employment relationship with the Employer shall terminate for any of the following reasons:

- 1. If he quits or retires;
- 2. If he is terminated or discharged for just cause;
- 3. If he is absent from work for more that three (3) consecutive working days, and there is no notification from the employee for each occasion of absence, within 15 minutes from the time the employee should have been at work, unless it is beyond the employee's control;
- 4. If he fails to return on the required date following an approved leave of absence, vacation, or disciplinary layoff, unless a satisfactory reason is given;
- 5. If he has been on layoff status for a period of one (1) year;
- 6. If he fails to report for work within two (2) weeks following notification of recall from layoff by certified mail, return receipt requested, sent to his last known address;
- 7. If he fails to inform the Employer within three (3) working days following receipt of notification of recall from layoff that he intends to return to work for the Employer.

Section D. Promotion: Employees who, in the judgment of the Employer, have the required training, ability, aptitude, seniority, and knowledge for positions of increased responsibility shall be considered for promotion when vacancies occur. Seniority shall not be used as a basis for promotion unless the other qualifications of two (2) or more employees are considered by the Department Head to be equal.

- 1. Upon approval to fill an existing vacancy, such job opening shall be posted for a period of five (5) working days. The bidding procedure for the vacancy shall be on the posting.
- 2. All vacancies shall be posted upon the bulletin board at the Courthouse in Hillsdale, Michigan.

<u>Section E. Seniority List</u>: An up-to-date seniority list for the bargaining unit shall be furnished to the Union by the Employer annually by January 31st of each year. Employees will have ten (10) calendar days to object to the accuracy of the list and must submit their objection in writing with a copy to the Employer and the Union.

<u>Section F.</u> <u>Benefit Accumulation</u>: Benefits such as insurance, vacation, and sick leave shall not accrue, continue, or be paid during any unpaid leave of absence unless otherwise specifically provided in one of the Leave of Absence Sections of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 - LAYOFF AND RECALL

Section A. Layoff and Recall Procedure: In the event a reduction in force occurs, the County shall offer each employee in the classification and department affected the option of taking a voluntary layoff. The County shall accept any voluntary layoffs before exercising its discretion to layoff the employee with the least seniority in the classification and department affected.

Thereafter, the employee with the most seniority in the department shall be the last employee laid off, provided the employee is qualified to perform the available assigned work and if a part-time employee, the employee is willing to work full time hours if, within the discretion of the Department Head, they are needed to work full time hours.

An employee is qualified to perform the work if the employee possesses sufficient skill and ability to satisfactorily perform the work without additional training. This shall be determined by the County. If the more senior part-time employee refuses to work full time hours, the County can lay off the more senior part-time employee in the classification and department affected rather than the least senior full-time employee.

Section B. Increase in Force: When an increase in force becomes necessary, the employee on layoff with the most seniority within the Department shall be the first employee recalled, provided the employee is qualified to perform the work. If the employee with the most seniority on layoff is a part-time employee who refuses to work full-time hours and the Department Head determines a full-time employee is necessary to carry out the operations of the Department, a less senior full-time employee on layoff may be recalled before the more senior part-time employee.

An employee is qualified to perform the work if the employee possesses the sufficient skill and ability to satisfactorily perform the work without additional training. This shall be determined by the County. Upon recall, an employee must return to his/her former classification except by mutual consent. In the event an employee is recalled to a different classification or a different department, then he/she shall serve a 30-day probationary period.

<u>Section C.</u> <u>Notification of Layoff</u>: Employees who are to be laid-off shall receive five (5) working days advance notice, unless such layoff is necessitated by an unusual circumstance where such advance notice is not possible.

Section D. Notification of Recall: Notification of recall from layoff shall be sent by certified mail to the employee's last known address. Employees who decline recall or who, in the absence of extenuating circumstances, fail to respond within three (3) working days following receipt of notification shall be presumed to have resigned and their names shall be removed from the seniority and preferred eligibility lists.

ARTICLE 12 - LEAVE PROVISIONS

The provisions of the Family Leave Act shall be adopted in their entirety insofar as they are not inconsistent with other provisions of the expired Labor Agreement and its amendments. Further, it is agreed that no employee shall suffer a reduction in benefits through the adoption of said Family Leave Act.

Unpaid Leave

Section A. Personal Leave:

- 1. A personal leave of absence without pay may be granted to employees who have completed their probationary period for valid reasons. Such leave will not exceed one (1) week unless extended by mutual agreement. The Department Head has the discretion to determine whether to grant any leave request under Article 12 excepting for a leave under Section H, Workers Compensation Leave and subject to Section A (3).
 - a. A personal leave shall be defined as any unpaid leave granted for any purpose including any leave hereinafter described in paragraphs B through E and H, both inclusive, and further specifically including a leave where an individual is receiving disability benefits regardless of who pays the premium.
- 2. Such leaves will be granted only if an employee has used all of their accumulated paid leave time excepting for vacation time.
- 3. A personal leave shall not exceed thirty (30) days unless the request and granting of the same falls within the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act. Any personal leave exceeding one (1) week must be by mutual agreement between the employee, the Department Head and the County.
- 4. Non-probationary employees, who are granted said leaves, shall continue to accrue seniority and benefits while on personal leave. Additionally, employees eligible to receive insurance benefits shall continue to receive said benefits.
- 5. To the extent practical, the Department Head will grant leave for emergency circumstances for a period not to exceed one (1) week unless extended by mutual agreement. The Department Head will not be unreasonable in his/her refusal to grant emergency leave.

Section B. Union Educational Leave:

1. Leaves of Absence without pay may be granted to any non-probationary employee who is selected by the Union to attend educational classes or conventions conducted by the Union so long as said attendance does not interfere with the departmental functions.

- 2. The number of employees on Union educational leave shall not exceed three (3) and the number of working days shall not exceed five (5) in any one calendar year, provided however, that not more than one person from a given department shall be on said leave at one time.
- 3. Employees who are granted leave under this Section shall continue to accrue seniority and shall be eligible to receive insurance benefits.

Section C. Union Business Leave:

- 1. Leaves of absence without pay may be granted to any non-probationary employees elected to any Union office or selected by Union to do work which takes them from employment with their Employer.
- 2. Not more than one employee shall be eligible for such leave at anyone time.
- 3. Such leave shall not exceed one (1) year, however, this leave may be extended by mutual agreement.
- 4. Employees desiring such leave shall give the Employer at least thirty (30) working days notice prior to the effective date of the leave and at least fifteen (15) days notice prior to returning to work from said leave.
- 5. Employees on such leave will accumulate seniority.

Section D. Military Leave:

1. All employees shall receive military leave when requested pursuant to federal law and shall be entitled to all benefits pursuant thereto.

Section E. Educational Leave:

- 1. Leaves of absence without pay may be granted to non-probationary employees desiring to further their education after having completed three (3) years of service.
- 2. Said leave may be granted by the department head for a maximum period of one year but may be extended by agreement between the employee and the department head.
- 3. Employees will not accrue seniority or benefits while on educational leave.

Section F. Purpose of Leaves:

1. It is understood by the parties that leaves of absence are to be used for the purpose intended, and employees shall make their intent known when applying for such leaves. There shall be no duplication or pyramiding of leave benefits for types of absence. Employees shall not accept employment while on leaves of absence unless agreed to by

the Employer. Acceptance of employment or working for another employer without prior approval while on leaves of absence shall result in immediate termination of employment with the Employer. All leaves of absence shall be without pay unless specifically provided to the contrary by the provisions of the Leave Section involved.

Section G. Procedure for Requesting Leaves:

1. Requests for a leave of absence must be submitted in writing by the employee to his immediate supervisor at least ten (10) days in advance of the date the leave is to commence, except in emergency situations. The request for the leave of absence shall state the reason for the leave and the exact dates on which the leave is to begin and end.

Authorization or denial of a leave of absence shall be furnished to the employee in writing by the Employer. Any request for an extension of a leave of absence must be submitted in writing to the Employer at least ten (10) days in advance of the expiration date of the original leave, stating the reasons for the extension request and the exact revised date the employee is expected to return to work. Authorization or denial of the extension request shall be furnished in writing to the employee by the Employer.

Section H. Workers' Compensation Leave:

- 1. If an employee is injured on the job so as to be entitled to workers' compensation benefits, such employee may apply or they may choose not to apply accumulated sick pay, compensatory time, personal days or vacation time in not less than 2 hour increments to make up the difference between regular net salary (gross salary less all net deductions for federal, state, and local taxes) and his/her workers' compensation benefits. Upon depletion of accumulated sick leave, compensatory time, personal days or vacation time, these differential payments shall terminate.
- 2. During said workers' compensation leave, seniority shall continue to accumulate and shall be retained thereafter.
- 3. Additionally, benefits including vacation, sick days, personal days, longevity and insurance shall cease to be accrued or be paid for provided, however, that any person who is on workers' compensation leave may elect to take a twelve (12) week leave of absence pursuant to the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act in which case health insurance payments shall continue for the period of said leave. Thereafter, all such benefits shall cease provided the employee shall have any and all COBRA rights respecting said insurance coverage.
- 4. Additionally, any person who is drawing Workers' Compensation benefits as of January 1, 1996, shall continue to have their health insurance paid for by the employer until July 1,1996, at which time said insurance payments by the employer shall cease.
- 5. The Employer shall compute all Workers' Compensation benefits pursuant to the laws of the State of Michigan.

ARTICLE 13 - PAID LEAVES

Section A. Bereavement Leave:

- 1. Employees upon request will be excused for up to three (3) scheduled working days, four days if the funeral is 150 miles or more away from the employee's residence, immediately following the date of death of a member of the employee's immediate family so that said employees may attend the funeral.
- 2. Immediate family shall be defined as including the employees' spouse, children, step-children, foster children, parents, step-parents, foster parents, brothers, sisters, step-sisters, step-brothers, natural brother-in-law, natural sister-in-law, grand-parents, grandchildren, parent-in law, and other persons for whose financial or physical care the employee is primarily responsible.
- 3. The employee excused from work hereunder shall receive the amount of wages he would have earned by working during his straight time hours or such scheduled days of work for which he/she is excused.
- 4. Employees may be granted additional time off for travel or otherwise by use of earned vacation or personal days charged to sick leave upon approval of their Department Head.

ARTICLE 14 - SICK LEAVE AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Section A. Commencing with the date of this Agreement, each non-probationary employee shall have the number of sick leave days that they have accumulated while working for the County of Hillsdale available to them not to exceed thirty (30) in number. Sick leave shall thereafter accumulate at the rate of one (1) day per month. On the first (1st) regularly scheduled payday after December 1, 2007, and on the first (1st) regularly scheduled payday after December 1st of each following year this Agreement is in effect, any employee who accumulates more than thirty (30) days by not using their accrued sick leave during the year shall be paid at the current year's hourly rate for all such days and portions thereof exceeding thirty (30) days which have been accumulated and are unused as of December 1st of the current year. This payment will be made by a check separate from the employee's regularly-scheduled paycheck. (Example: The employee has accumulated thirty (30) days by December 1st of the previous year, and accumulates twelve (12) days by December 1st of the current year and of these he/she uses two (2). On the first regularly-scheduled pay after December 1st of the current year, he/she will be paid for the ten (10) unused sick days at his/her current rate of pay.)

Sick leave shall be granted when it is established to the Employer's satisfaction that an employee is incapacitated for the safe performance of his duties because of:

- 1. Illness or injury to the employee;
- 2. Serious illness in employees' immediate family which requires his or her attention;
- 3. Exposure to contagious diseases.

All sick leave used shall be supported by a written verification signed by the employee and the Employer and submitted to the payroll office with the current time sheets. The Employer may request as a condition of any sick leave a medical certification setting forth the reasons for the sick leave.

Falsely setting forth the reasons for the absence shall constitute just cause for dismissal.

Notwithstanding the above, all employees may use four (4) days per calendar year as personal days and charge them to sick leave with no explanation as to the reason therefore provided they shall notify the Employer one week in advance of their intent to use a personal day. Said personal day shall not be used to augment vacation or other sick leave nor shall personal days be allowed without prior written approval the day before or the day after any holiday. Employees who are hired after January 1, 1999, shall accumulate earned sick time during their probationary period which shall relate back to the date of hire.

ARTICLE 15 - DISCHARGE & DISCIPLINE

<u>Section A.</u> The Employer shall not discharge or discipline an employee for other than just cause.

<u>Section B</u>. The discharge and/or discipline of an employee shall be reviewable by way of the grievance procedure.

<u>Section C</u>. Discipline shall be defined as a verbal or written warning, suspension or discharge. All disciplinary notices may be used as a basis for further discipline unless otherwise indicated in the disciplinary notice.

ARTICLE 16 - HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT

Section A. Hours of Work: The work week shall be 40 hours and the offices in the Courthouse shall be open from 8:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. with all employees to receive a one hour lunch break. To better serve the public the elected or appointed department head or his designee may assign alternate lunch times in order to have the office remain open during the hour of 12:00 noon until 1:00 p.m. These assigned alternate lunch hours shall not commence before 11:30 a.m. And shall be completed by 1:30 p.m.

In the event that it should be feasible, in terms of productivity, to add a shift or to change the times when employees in various departments work, this may be done at the discretion of the Employer. In exercising this option, the Employer agrees to meet and confer with the Union before enacting this plan.

The above shift hours shall not apply to janitorial or maintenance personnel who shall work the shifts in being upon the effective date of this Agreement.

Section B. Overtime: Time and one-half shall be paid for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week and 8 hours per day or the Employer, and employee by mutual agreement, may grant to the employee equal time off as compensatory time.

Each party shall have the number of hours of compensatory time which they have accumulated as of the effective date of this Agreement provided, however, that compensatory time shall not accumulate beyond forty-five (45) hours and each person who shall have in excess of 45 hours of compensatory time shall be paid for the difference between 45 and the amount accumulated in December of each year that this contract or any extension thereof is in effect at a rate of pay equal to the rate of pay achieved at the time the compensatory time was accrued.

Section C. Work Breaks: The County shall grant two 15-minute break periods during an 8-hour shift, one to be taken in the morning between 10:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m. and one to be taken in the afternoon between 2:30 p.m. and 3:30 p.m. These work breaks shall be taken in such a fashion that the level of service in any department shall not be diminished.

<u>Section D.</u> <u>Working Out of Classification</u>: An employee in a lower-rated classification will only be paid for work in a higher-rated classification, if the Department Head, in writing, directs the lower rated employee to perform work of the higher rated classification. The Department Head shall have the sole discretion to determine whether to assign an employee to perform the work of a higher rated classification.

<u>Section E.</u> <u>Holiday Pay</u>: In the unlikely event that any employee shall work on a holiday, they shall receive pay at the rate of 2 times the hourly rate for all hours worked.

ARTICLE 17 - HOLIDAYS

Section A. The following shall be established as paid holidays:

1.	New Year's Day	7.	Labor Day
2.	Martin Luther King Day	8.	Veterans Day
3.	Presidents Day	9.	Thanksgiving Day
4.	One-Half Day Good Friday	10.	Friday after Thanksgiving
5.	Memorial Day	11.	Christmas Eve Day
6.	Independence Day	12.	Christmas Day
		13.	New Year's Eve

Additionally, general election occurring every 4th year shall be a holiday as well as any other day that the Board of Commissioners, by resolution, closes the Courthouse in celebration of an event.

Each of the above holidays will be observed on the day that the holiday is observed by the Michigan Courts.

ARTICLE 18 - VACATION

<u>Section A.</u> All employees covered by this Agreement who are on the seniority list of the County, on each anniversary of their employment date, shall be entitled to a vacation with pay at their current rate, in accordance with the following plan:

- 1. Employees with one (1) year or more of seniority will be entitled to five (5) working days of vacation with pay at their regular rate.
- 2. Employees with two (2) years or more of seniority on their anniversary date shall be allowed ten (10) working days of vacation with pay at their regular rate.
- 3. Employees with five years or more of seniority on their anniversary date shall be allowed fifteen (15) working days of vacation with pay at their regular rate of pay.
- 4. Employees with ten (10) years or more of seniority on their anniversary date shall be allowed twenty (20) working days of vacation with pay at their regular rate of pay.
- Section B. Vacation Eligibility: An employee's eligibility for his vacation shall be determined on the first and subsequent anniversary dates of his employment. The first and subsequent anniversary years shall be hereinafter referred to as the qualifying year.
- <u>Section C</u>. Employees who retire or voluntarily terminate their employment with the County shall be entitled to be paid for their accrued vacation leave at their regular rate of pay. Employees who are terminated by the County shall forfeit any accrued vacation pay.
- <u>Section D.</u> Employees who are absent because of sickness, injury or disability in excess of that allowed under the leave of absence provisions, may, at the request of the employee, be allowed to charge the same against their vacation leave allowance.
- <u>Section E.</u> Employee vacation schedules will be determined by Department. Employees must submit a written request for vacation, of one week or more, to their Department Head at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the date their vacation is to commence. The Employer will respond to any written request for vacation time within five (5) working days from the date of said request. The Department Head has the sole discretion to grant or deny a vacation request based on the business needs of the Department. The Department Head will attempt to accommodate the employee's request. In the event of a conflict between employees for the same vacation time, department seniority between the employees will control.
- <u>Section F.</u> If a paid holiday occurs during an employee's vacation, he shall receive one day's pay under the holiday pay provisions for such holiday.
- <u>Section G.</u> An employee shall not carry over earned vacation from year to year. Vacations shall be granted only in the year in which they are due. In the event an employee fails to request a vacation leave or does not take his/her vacation in the year which it is due, the employee will be paid for the time of their earned vacation at their regular rate of pay.

ARTICLE 19 - TRAVEL PAY

<u>Section A.</u> Travel pay shall be as established by the Board from time to time and this Section shall specifically authorize the amount per mile that is in effect as of this date.

ARTICLE 20 - INSURANCE

Section A. Effective upon ratification of this Agreement by all parties, employees will be entitled to Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO15, \$15/\$30 Rx, with the Employer reimbursing all copays and deductibles (except for co-pays on prescription drugs) to either the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 1 Plan or Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 10 Plan, at the employee's option, as attached hereto. The Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 15 Plan will continue to offer the same vision coverage that was applicable immediately before ratification of this Agreement by all parties. Those employees electing reimbursement to the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 1 plan shall continue to pay \$32.64 per pay for single coverage, \$44.22 per pay for 2-person coverage, and \$48.01 per pay for family coverage. Those employees electing reimbursement to the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 10 plan shall continue to pay \$8.96 per pay for single coverage, \$19.79 per pay for 2-person coverage, and \$23.31 per pay for family coverage. In addition to these premium contributions, each covered employee shall pay 25% of all future premium increases applicable to the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 15 Plan.

Section B. Any person who is eligible for any County health insurance plan may elect to opt out of the plan in which he/she is enrolled or for which he/she is eligible and will be paid one hundred Twenty-Five Dollars (\$125.00) per month if he/she gives up single coverage or Two Hundred-Fifty Dollars (\$250.00) per month if she/she gives up two (2) person or family coverage. The election to opt-out shall be available one (1) time during the current contract. A person who opts out of the insurance thereby taking the monthly stipend shall not be entitled to re-enter the program unless they have a change in circumstances and then only subject to enrollment periods, the rules of the carrier and the repayment of any monthly stipend paid for any period subsequent to the effective date of coverage. The right to opt out will commence immediately upon the effective date of this contract.

<u>Section C.</u> <u>Dental Coverage</u>: The SEIU membership will be entitled to elect Dental Coverage. The premium for this coverage will be paid by the employee for the duration of the contract.

Section D. Eligibility, coverage, and benefits under the above insurance plans are subject to the terms and conditions, including any waiting period or other time limits contained in the contract between the employer and the carrier. The employer will have the right, after consultation with the Union, to select the carrier and/or benefit manager; to change carriers or benefit managers; to change policies or plans; or to become self-insured; provided that substantially equivalent benefits are provided at no additional costs to employees. A grievance alleging a violation of this provision shall bypass Steps 1-4 of the Grievance Procedure, and shall proceed directly to arbitration.

ARTICLE 21 - LONGEVITY PAY

Section A. A longevity provision is hereby established and all benefits shall be determined as of the anniversary date of the employee for each year that this contract or any extension thereof is in force. Starting in 1986, an employee who is actively employed as of his or her anniversary date, and who has completed four (4) full years of employment with the County, shall receive a longevity pay in accordance with the schedule set forth below. Part-time employees will receive a pro-rata share of the longevity pay based on the years they have worked part-time. In the event that the employee has been on layoff or unpaid leave during the full twelve (12) calendar months before his or her anniversary date, the amount of the longevity pay will be prorated based upon the number of total calendar months that the employee has not been on layoff or unpaid leave in the previous twelve (12) full months.

Years Completed 4-7 8-11 12-15 16 or over	2007 Amount Payable \$350 \$450 \$550 \$650
Years Completed 5-7 8-11 12-15 16 or over	2008 Amount Payable \$350 \$450 \$550 \$650
Years Completed 6-7 8-11 12-15 16 or over	2009 Amount Payable \$350 \$450 \$550 \$650
Years Completed 7 8-11 12-15 16 or over	2010 Amount Payable \$350 \$450 \$550 \$650

This payment shall be paid to eligible employees the first payroll after the anniversary date of an employee who is eligible for this payment.

ARTICLE 22 - WAGES AND SERVICE CLASSIFICATIONS

SALARY SCHEDULE - SEIU EMPLOYEES

Within two (2) weeks of the Board of Commissioners ratification of this Agreement, each employee who is a member of the bargaining unit on that date of ratification shall receive a one-time, off-schedule payment equal to 1.00% of his/her earnings from January 1, 2007 to the date this Agreement is ratified. The following schedule for 2007 shall take effect upon ratification of this Agreement by both parties.

For work performed during each calendar year, each employee shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule:

2007							
Level	Hire	6 Months	1 Year	2 YEARS	3 YEARS		
01	\$16,099.20	\$18,574.40	\$19,614.40	\$20,321.60	\$22,027.20		
	\$7.74	\$8.93	\$9.43	\$9.77	\$10.59		
02	\$17,222.40	\$19,801.60	\$20,966.40	\$21,569.60	\$23,441.60		
	\$8.28	\$9.52	\$10.08	\$10.37	\$11.27		
03	\$18,345.60	\$20,841.60	\$21,923.20	\$22,568.00	\$24,856.00		
	\$8.82	\$10.02	\$10.54	\$10.85	\$11.95		
04	\$19,385.60	\$21,964.80	\$23,192.00	\$23,816.00	\$26,416.00		
	\$9.32	\$10.56	\$11.15	\$11.45	\$12.70		
05	\$20,654.40	\$23,420.80	\$24,731.20	\$25,604.80	\$28,204.80		
	\$9.93	\$11.26	\$11.89	\$12.31	\$13.56		
06	\$22,006.40	\$24,939.20	\$26,332.80	\$27,040.00	\$30,284.80		
	\$10.58	\$11.99	\$12.66	\$13.00	\$14.56		
07	\$23,524.80	\$26,686.40	\$27,976.00	\$29,016.00	\$32,219.20		
	\$11.31	\$12.83	\$13.45	\$13.95	\$15.49		

2008							
LEVEL	Hire	6 Months	1 YEAR	2 Years	3 YEARS	4 YEARS	
01	\$16,348.80	\$18,844.80	\$19,905.60	\$20,633.60	\$22,360.00	\$22,588.80	
	\$7.86	\$9.06	\$9.57	\$9.92	\$10.75	\$10.86	
02	\$17,472.00	\$20,092.80	\$21,278.40	\$21,902.40	\$23,795.20	\$24,024.00	
	\$8.40	\$9.66	\$10.23	\$10.53	\$11.44	\$11.55	
03	\$18,616.00	\$21,153.60	\$22,256.00	\$22,900.80	\$25,230.40	\$25,480.00	
	\$8.95	\$10.17	\$10.70	\$11.01	\$12.13	\$12.25	
04	\$19,676.80	\$22,297.60	\$23,545.60	\$24,169.60	\$26,811.20	\$27,081.60	
	\$9.46	\$10.72	\$11.32	\$11.62	\$12.89	\$13.02	
05	\$20,966.40	\$23,774.40	\$25,105.60	\$25,979.20	\$28,620.80	\$28,912.00	
	\$10.08	\$11.43	\$12.07	\$12.49	\$13.76	\$13.90	
06	\$22,339.20	\$25,313.60	\$26,728.00	\$27,456.00	\$30,742.40	\$31,054.40	
	\$10.74	\$12.17	\$12.85	\$13.20	\$14.78	\$14.93	
07	\$23,878.40	\$27,081.60	\$28,392.00	\$29,452.80	\$32,697.60	\$33,030.40	
	\$11.48	\$13.02	\$13.65	\$14.16	\$15.72	\$15.88	

	2009							
LEVEL	Hire	6 Months	1 YEAR	2 YEARS	3 YEARS	4 YEARS	5 YEARS	
01	\$16,598.40	\$19,136.00	\$20,196.80	\$20,945.60	\$22,692.80	\$22,921.60	\$23,150.40	
	\$7.98	\$9.20	\$9.71	\$10.07	\$10.91	\$11.02	\$11.13	
02	\$17,742.40	\$20,384.00	\$21,590.40	\$22,235.20	\$24,148.80	\$24,377.60	\$24,627.20	
	\$8.53	\$9.80	\$10.38	\$10.69	\$11.61	\$11.72	\$11.84	
03	\$18,886.40	\$21,465.60	\$22,588.80	\$23,254.40	\$25,604.80	\$25,854.40	\$26,104.00	
	\$9.08	\$10.32	\$10.86	\$11.18	\$12.31	\$12.43	\$12.55	
04	\$19,968.00	\$22,630.40	\$23,899.20	\$24,523.20	\$27,206.40	\$27,497.60	\$27,768.00	
	\$9.60	\$10.88	\$11.49	\$11.79	\$13.08	\$13.22	\$13.35	
05	\$21,278.40	\$24,128.00	\$25,480.00	\$26,374.40	\$29,057.60	\$29,348.80	\$29,640.00	
	\$10.23	\$11.60	\$12.25	\$12.68	\$13.97	\$14.11	\$14.25	
06	\$22,672.00	\$25,688.00	\$27,123.20	\$27,872.00	\$31,200.00	\$31,512.00	\$31,824.00	
	\$10.90	\$12.35	\$13.04	\$13.40	\$15.00	\$15.15	\$15.30	
07	\$24,232.00	\$27,497.60	\$28,808.00	\$29,889.60	\$33,196.80	\$33,529.60	\$33,862.40	
	\$11.65	\$13.22	\$13.85	\$14.37	\$15.96	\$16.12	\$16.28	

	2010								
LEVEL	HIRE	6 Months	1 YEAR	2 YEARS	3 YEARS	4 YEARS	5 YEARS	6 YEARS	
01	\$16,848.00	\$19,427.20	\$20,508.80	\$21,257.60	\$23,025.60	\$23,275.20	\$23,504.00	\$23,732.80	
	\$8.10	\$9.34	\$9.86	\$10.22	\$11.07	\$11.19	\$11.30	\$11.41	
02	\$18,012.80	\$20,696.00	\$21,923.20	\$22,568.00	\$24,502.40	\$24,752.00	\$25,001.60	\$25,251.20	
	\$8.66	\$9.95	\$10.54	\$10.85	\$11.78	\$11.90	\$12.02	\$12.14	
03	\$19,177.60	\$21,777.60	\$22,291.60	\$23,608.00	\$25,979.20	\$26,249.60	\$26,499.20	\$26,769.60	
	\$9.22	\$10.47	\$11.02	\$11.35	\$12.49	\$12.62	\$12.74	\$12.87	
04	\$20,259.20	\$22,963.20	\$24,252.80	\$24,897.60	\$27,622.40	\$27,913.60	\$28,184.00	\$28,475.20	
	\$9.74	\$11.04	\$11.66	\$11.97	\$13.28	\$13.42	\$13.55	\$13.69	
05	\$21,590.40	\$24,481.60	\$25,854.40	\$26,769.60	\$29,494.40	\$29,785.60	\$30,076.80	\$30,368.00	
	\$10.38	\$11.77	\$12.43	\$12.87	\$14.18	\$14.32	\$14.46	\$14.60	
06	\$23,004.80	\$26,083.20	\$27,539.20	\$28,288.00	\$31,678.40	\$31,990.40	\$32,302.40	\$32,635.20	
	\$11.60	\$12.54	\$13.24	\$13.60	\$15.23	\$15.38	\$15.53	\$15.69	
07	\$24,585.60	\$27,913.60	\$29,244.80	\$30,347.20	\$33,696.00	\$34,028.80	\$34,361.60	\$34,715.20	
	\$11.82	\$13.42	\$14.06	\$14.59	\$16.20	\$16.36	\$16.52	\$16.69	

ARTICLE 23 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

<u>Section A</u>. In the event any sentence, clause or phase of this Collective Bargaining Agreement shall be held for any reason to be inoperative or void or invalid, the remainder of the portions of this contract shall not be affected thereby.

<u>Section B</u>. The parties acknowledge that past practices for employees will be limited to those practices currently enjoyed by the employees within the Department in which they are employed.

Section C. The parties acknowledge that during negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject matter of collective bargaining, and the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. The County and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject matter referred to or covered in this Agreement even though such subjects or matter may have not been within the knowledge, or contemplation of either or both the parties at the time they negotiated or signed the contract.

Section D. This Agreement supersedes and cancels all prior agreements, whether verbal or written, between the County and the Union and constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties. Any amendment or agreement supplemental hereto shall not be binding upon either party unless executed in writing by the parties hereto, and any current written amendments are hereby made part of this Agreement.

<u>Section E.</u> Should any court, board or agency of competent and proper jurisdiction rule that part or parts of this Agreement are void or of no effect, the remaining parts of the contract shall continue to be binding on the parties. This clause is made without prejudice to any of the parties hereto and is not an admission by any of the parties. It shall not be used in any litigation involving the aforesaid parties.

Section F. This Agreement shall become effective when signed, and retroactive to January 1, 2007. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the 31st day of December 2010. It is further agreed that the Agreement shall become open for negotiation 90 days prior to its termination date. Either party may terminate on the termination date by giving notice to the other within a 15-day period immediately following 90 days prior to the end of the Agreement.

In lieu of a termination notice, the notice may call for an amendment to the Agreement and if such notice is given, the other party shall have an additional 10 days to designate whether it desires to terminate or amend the Agreement. In the event amendment notices are given, all the provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until a settlement is reached on the proposed amendments. Provided, however, that either party may terminate this Agreement during the period of negotiations subsequent to the above termination date by giving a 30 day notice of termination. Notices shall be given in writing and shall be sent to the Union addressed to their Chairman of the bargaining committee at such place as he shall notify the County. Notice to the County is sufficient if given to the Labor Relations Committee of the Hillsdale County Board of Commissioners and the Hillsdale County Clerk, Hillsdale County Courthouse, Hillsdale, Michigan 49242.

<u>Section G.</u> During the summer months, the Employer will furnish for the employees' benefit a picnic table upon the Courthouse premises, the location of which shall be within the sole discretion of the Employer.

<u>Section H.</u> The Union agrees to the reallocation of the Deputy Director of Equalization to a Supervisory, non-bargaining unit position.

<u>Section I.</u> It is understood between the Employer and the Union that the salary schedule for each year shall apply only to work performed during the applicable calendar year. Any applicable raises shall take place after 12:00 a.m. on January 1st of each year.

Article 22 of the current agreement, regarding the Wages and Service Classifications shall be amended to provide, immediately after the heading: "For work performed during each calendar year, each employee shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule."

ARTICLE 24 - RETIREMENT

The Employer and Employee agree that the Employer's contribution to the Retirement Program shall be 6.5% per year. Upon becoming eligible under the terms of the applicable retirement plan, the employee shall enroll in the Retirement Program.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement hereunto subscribe their hands and seals the day and year indicated.

HILLSDALE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS	SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL
AND DEPARTMENT HEADS	UNION, LOCAL 517M
Maxine Vanlerberg 9808 Chairperson, Board of Commissioners	Linda L. Gromis 7/25/08 Date
Morros C. Mohr Date	Ally KMMy 125/08 Date
County Clerk Say Francisco 9/5/08 Gary Leininger Date	hyle Motally 8-7-2008
County Treasurer KUMA LIMULA 115/08	Hower fforder 7/23/08
Bambi Somerlott Date County Register of Deeds	Howard F/Gordon Date
Neal Brady Date	
County Prosecutor	
William Word 9/8/08 William Word Date	•
County Deain Commissioner Janey W. Junhard 9-8-08	
Stanley Byrchardt Date County Sheriff	

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

It is hereby agreed by and between the County of Hillsdale, the Hillsdale County Prosecuting Attorney, Hillsdale County Clerk, Hillsdale County Register of Deeds, Hillsdale County Treasurer, Hillsdale County Drain Commissioner, and Hillsdale County Sheriff ("the Employer") and the Michigan Public Employees, SEIU Local 517M ("the Union") that, in tentative settlement of all outstanding issues under negotiation, the parties negotiating teams agree to the following settlement, and agree to recommend ratification to their respective principal parties, as follows:

- 1. The parties' new contract shall be effective from the date the contract is ratified by both parties to, and including, December 31, 2010.
- 2. The parties' new contract shall consist of the contract between the Employer and the Union in effect from January 1, 2004 to December 31, 2006, as amended by the terms of this Settlement Agreement, and as amended by the parties Tentative Agreement of March 28, 2007.
- 3. Increase all wage rates in Article 22 as follows:

Upon ratification by both parties	1.50%
1/1/08	1.50%
1/1/09	1.50%
1/1/10	1.50%

4. Effective January 1, 2008, create a 4 Year step on the salary schedule, with the pay rate at each level on the 4 Year step being 6.50% higher than the corresponding level on the 3 Year step. Effective January 1, 2008, revise Article 21 to change all references from 4 years to 5 years.

Effective January 1, 2009, create a 5 Year step on the salary schedule, with the pay rate at each level on the 5 Year step being 0.56% higher than the corresponding level on the 4 Year step. Effective January 1, 2009, revise Article 21 to change all references from 5 years to 6 years.

Effective January 1, 2010, create a 6 Year step on the salary schedule, with the pay rate at each level on the 6 Year step being £50% higher than the corresponding level on the 5 Year step. Effective January 1, 2008, revise Article 21 to change all references from 6 years to 7 years.

5. Within two (2) weeks of the Board of Commissioners'
ratification of this Agreement, each employee uno is a member of the Bargaining unit on that date , shall receive a one-time,

earnings from 1-1-07 to the date this Agreement is ratified by the Board of Commissioners. ratified by The 1-18. Revise the second sentence of Article 2, Section B(2) to read as follows:

The benefits for part-time employees will be prorated.

- 7. 6. Effective January 1, 2008, revise Article 17 (page 21) to eliminate holiday during Fair Week, and add New Year's Eve as a holiday. Revise the last paragraph of Article 17 (page 21) to read: "Each of the above holidays will be observed on the day that the holiday is observed by the Michigan Courts."
- 8.7. Revise Section A of Article 20 (page 23) to read as follows:

Effective upon ratification of this Agreement by all parties, employees will be entitled to Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO15, \$15/\$30 Rx, with the Employer reimbursing all co-pays and deductibles (except for co-pays on prescription drugs) to either the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 1 Plan or Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 10 Plan, at the employee's option, as attached hereto. The Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 15 Plan will continue to offer the same vision coverage that was applicable immediately before ratification of this Agreement by all parties. Those employees electing reimbursement to the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 1 plan shall continue to pay \$32.64 per pay for single coverage, \$44.22 per pay for 2-person coverage, and \$48.01 per pay for family coverage. Those employees electing reimbursement to the level of the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 10 plan shall continue to pay \$8.96 per pay for single coverage, \$19.79 per pay for 2-person coverage, and \$23.31 per pay for family coverage. In addition to these premium contributions, each covered employee shall pay 25% of all future premium increases applicable to the Blue Cross/Blue Shield PPO 15 Plan.

Add the following as Section D to Article 20 (page 23):

Eligibility, coverage, and benefits under the above insurance plans are subject to the terms and conditions, including any waiting period or other time limits contained in the contract between the employer and the carrier. The employer will have the right, wafter consultation select the carrier and/or benefit manager; to change carriers or with the to change carrier and/or benefit manager; to change carriers or benefit managers; to change policies or plans, or to become self-Union, insured; provided that comparable benefits are provided. at no

S-bstatially equivalent

employeus. A greenate 2 alteging a violation of
this provision shall bypass Steps 1-4 of
the Growing Procedure,
and shall proceed.

The Arbetration

10. 9. Revise the second and third sentences of Article 21 (page 24) to read:

Starting in 1986, an employee who is actively employed as of his or her anniversary date, and who has completed on said date four (4) full years of employment with the County, shall receive a longevity pay in accordance with the schedule set forth below. Part-time employees will receive a pro-rata share of the longevity pay based on the years they have worked part-time. In the event that the employee has been on layoff or unpaid leave during the full twelve (12) calendar months before his or her anniversary date, the amount of the longevity pay will be prorated based upon the number of total calendar months that the employee has not been on layoff or unpaid leave in the previous twelve (12) full months.

- 11. It. The Union withdraws all other proposals.
- The Employer withdraws all other proposals.
- The Union will notify the Employer, in writing, when it has ratified the contract.

Dated: October 18, 2007

THE UNION:

THE EMPLOYER:

hel Morally

Dally Bacter.

Buida Harmus

Jan A. Vernice Col

Pake D. Hoyes, FOC

ADDENDUM TO UNION AGREEMENT - SEIU

SENIORITY LIST (Reference: ARTICLE X,			ence: ARTICLE X, Se	ction E)	Date: C	October 24, 2007
Seniority (Account		
Number	Name	Hire Date	Department	Number	Job Class	Job Title
	Spalding, Carol A.	08/30/71	MSU Extension	261	06-3	Office Manager / Secretary
02	Loomis, Linda	03/30/83	County Treasurer	253	06-3 (+\$100/mo)	Head Bookkeeper / System Technician
03	Lockwood, Edna	06/03/85	County Treasurer	253	05-3	Tax Specialist
04	Sutton, Mark	05/24/88	Maintenance	265/295	03-3	Janitorial / Housekeeping
05	Tesler, Dawn	07/27/89	Maintenance	265	03-3	Janitorial / Housekeeping
06	Moore, Karen	11/19/90	Prosecuting Attorney	267	06-3	Legal Secretary
07	Kyser, Stephenie	05/29/91	County Treasurer	253	05-3	Assistant Bookkeeper
08	Bennett, Carol	09/30/96	County Clerk	215	06-3	Deputy Clerk / Account Specialist
09	Kane, Cheryl	12/09/96	Prosecuting Attorney	267	05-3	Legal Secretary
10	Werner, Diane	06/18/97	Maintenance	296	03-3	Janitorial / Housekeeping
11	Yager, Renee	02/02/98	Prosecuting Attorney	267	05-3	Legal Secretary
12	Bernath, Lisa	02/09/98	Equalization	257_	06-3	Assistant Description Analyst
13	Langhann, Tony	07/20/98	Maintenance	265	07-3	Maintenance
14	Berger, Dena	08/24/98	County Clerk	215	07-3	Deputy Clerk / Circuit Court
15	Dunbar, Judy	08/24/98	County Clerk	215	04-3	Deputy Clerk / Administrative Clerk
16	Baxter, Sally	08/24/98	MSU Extension	261	04-3	Junior Extension Secretary
17	Zimmerman, Lea Ann	11/17/98	County Clerk	215	05-3	Deputy Clerk / Administrative Clerk
18	Curtis, Patty	12/07/98	Drain Commissioner	275/441	06-3	Chief Clerk
19	VanAken, F. Fern	05/08/00	County Treasurer	253	04-3	Account Processor
20	Spieth, Catherine	05/15/00		351	03-3	Cook
21	Wise, Pamela	09/11/00	Prosecuting Attorney	267	05-3	Secretary / Receptionist
22	Lang, Tamra	10/16/00	Register of Deeds	268	05-3	Administrative Clerk
23	Gardiner, Candace	02/26/01	MSU Extension	261	07-3	Health Associate / FNP Coordinator
24	Biliman, Carolyn	03/01/01	County Treasurer	253	04-3	Account Processor
25	Brehm, Lori	06/11/01	Maintenance	265	03-3	Janitorial / Housekeeping
26	Sanford, Beth	10/08/01	Equalization	257	05-3	Account Processor
27	McHattie, Kyle	10/15/01	Data Processing	228	04-3	P. C. Technician
28	Rimer, Mary	09/04/02	Maintenance	265	03-3	Janitorial / Housekeeping
29	Sawyer, Cindy	09/09/02	Emergency Services	426	03-3	Administrative Assistant
30	Hartman, Jody	08/11/04	Maintenance	265	07-3	Maintenance
31	Brasher, Michael	03/28/05	Drain Commissioner	275	07-3	Maintenance
32	Winchell, Karen	07/07/05	Drain Commissioner	275	04-3	Clerk
33	McCallister, Joyce	09/12/05		257	05-3	Fleid Appraiser
34	Russell, Keith	09/26/08		542	06-2	Permits Clerk
35	Crawford, Mary R.	04/03/08		267	05-3	Victim Rights Coordinator
36	Word, Thomas M.	01/16/07	عداله باست براها بالمحدد في المراجع ومنظم المراجع ومنظم المراجع ومنظم المراجع ومنظم المراجع ومنظم المراجع والم	275	07-3	Maintenance

and the Blue Cross and Blue Shall a production of the Blue Cross and Blue Shalle and

Community BlueSM PPO Base Plan Benefits-at-a-Glance PPO 15 reimbursed to PPO 1 *Highlighted areas are reimbursed

In-Network

Out-of-Network

deductible reimbursed to

30% after deductible

Health Maintenance Exam - includes thest X-ray, EKG and select lab procedures	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Gynecological Exam	Covered = 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Pap Smear Serening - laboratory and pathology services	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Well-Baby and Child Care Visits	Covered - 100%*	Not covered
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	- 6 visits, birth through 12 months	1100 007 11 111
	• 6 visits, 13 months through 23 months	
	- 2 visits, 24 months through 35 months	
	• 2 visits, 36 months through 47 months	
	1 visit per birth year, 48 months through age 15	
mmunizations	Covered - 100% up through age 16	Not covered
Fecal Occult Blood Screening	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Flexible Sigmoidoscopy Exam	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) Screening	Covered - 100%*, one per calendar year	Not covered
Mammography		
Mammography Screening	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
		80% after deductible
	One per calendar year, no age restructions	
Physician Office Services		- ,
Office Visits	Covered - 520	Covered - 60% after
, 1510	C04#16# - 100	deductible reimbursed to
•	·	80% after deductible
Outpatient and Home Visits	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
		80% after deductible Mi
		be medically necessary
Office Consultations	Covered - \$20	Covered - 60%
		after deductible
		reimbursed to 80%
		after deductible
•		Must be medically
		necessary
Jegent Care Visits	Covered - 520	Covered - 60%
		after deductible
	- pp	reimbursed to 80%
		after deductible
	_	Must be medically
		necessary
Imergency Medical Care		
Inspiral Emergency Room	Covered - \$50 copay, waived if admitted or for	Covered - \$50 copey,
technical control of the control of	an accidental injury	waived if admitted or for
_	ter moideilthe Mildil	an accidental injury
Ambulance Services medically necessary	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 80% after
	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
		100% coverage
Diagnostic Services		
	C 400 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	D 1 (00) -0
aboratory and Pathology Services	Covered - 10% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after deductible reimbursed to
	100% coverage	40% coverage after
		deductible
Piagnostic Tests and X-rays	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
	10074 -014-15-	80% after deductible
	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
herapeutic Radiology		

100% coverage

Prenatal and Postnatal Care	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after
:		deductible reimbursed u 80% after deductible
	Includes care provided by a certific	d auter denneable
	nurse midwife	
Delivery and Nursery Care	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
	100% coverage	deductible reinburse to 80% after deductible
	includes delivery provided by	a certified nurse midwife
Hospital Care		
Semiprivate Room, Inpatient Physician Care, General Nursing Care, Huspital	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered 60% after
Services and Supplies	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
lote: Non emergency services must be rendered in a participating hospital.	Unlimited days	ac ve sofct degreeuple
noarient Consultations	Covered - 60% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
Shrisia Adibammin	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
		80% after deductible
hemothempy	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to
191.43	<u> </u>	80% after deductible
killed Nursing Care	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 80% after deductible reimbursed to
	100% coverage	.05 hazzudentible reimburzen to
	Up to 120 days per calendar year	199-5
ospice Care	Covered - 100%	Covered - 100%
	Limited to dollar maximum which is	
	adjusted periodically by the state	
ome Health Care – Unlimited Visits	Covered — 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered — 80% after deductible reimbursed to
iome Infusion Therapy	Covered — 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	100% after deductible Covered – 80% after deductible reimbursed to
jurgical Services	In-Network	0ut-of-Network
urgery – includes related surgical services	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
AIRCA - Welpage Interest and Sign 281,1002	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to 80%
resurgical consultations - with a doctor of medicine, osteopathy, podiatry or an	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after
ral surgeon		deductible reimbursed to 80%
Olumtary Sterilization	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	after deductible Covered = 60% after
vilmary sternization	100% coverage	deductible reimbursed to 80%
luman Organ Transplants		
pecified Human Organ Transplants - in designated facilities only, when cordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant Program (800-242-	Covered - 100%	Covered - in designated facilities only
504)	Limited to \$1 million lifetime maximum per	member per transplant type for
one Marrow - when coordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant	transplant procedure(s) and related professional. Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	Covered - 60% after
togram 300-242-3504): specific criteria applies	100% coverage	deductible reimbused to 30% after deductible
idney, Cornea and Skin	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered = 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
lental Health Care and Substance Abuse Treatment		
patient Mental Health Care	Covered - 50%	Covered - 50% after
•	Unlimited days	
patient Substance Abuse Treatment	Covered - 50%	Covered - 50% after deductible

Majornity Services Provided by a Physician

Prenatal and Postnatal Care

Covered – 100%

Covered – 100%

Includes care provided by a certified nurse midwife

Covered – 80% after deductible reimburse to deductible reimburse to 100% coverage

Covered – 80% after deductible reimburse to deductible reimburse to 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage

Includes delivery provided by a certified nurse midwife

11	ospital	Care
51	UP CILLE	

Semiprivate Room, Inpatient Physician Care, General Nursing Care, Hospital Services and Supplies	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered – 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible	
Note: Non emergency services must be rendered in a participating hospital.	Linlimited days		
Inpatient Consultations	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered.— 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible	
Chemotherapy	Covered – 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 50% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible	
Skilled Nursing Care	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 80% after deductible reimbursed to 100%	
	Up to 120 days per calendar year		
Hospice Care	Cuvacó = 100%	Covered - 100%	
	Limited to dollar maximum which is adjusted periodically by the state		
Home Health Care – Unlimited Visits	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered ~ 80% after deductible reimbursed to 100% after deductible	
Home infusion Therapy	Covered — 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 80% after deductible reimbursed to 100% coverage	

In-Network

Out-of-Network

Surgical Services

Surgery – includes related surgical services	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered – 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
Presurgical consultations - with a doctor of medicine, osteopathy, podiatry or an oral surgeon	Covered - 100%	Covered – 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
Voluntary Sterilization	Covered - 80% after deductible raimburse to 100% coverage	Covered 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible

Human Organ Transplants

Specified Human Organ Transplants – in designated facilities only, when coordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant Program (800-242-	Covered - 100%	Covered - in designated facilities only
3504)	Limited to \$1 million lifetime maximum per transplant procedure(s) and related professional	
Bone Marrow - when coordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant Program (800-242-3504); specific criteria applies	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered — 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
Kidney, Comea and Skin	Covered – 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible

Mental Health Care and Substance Abuse Treatment

Andreas reason of and Substance (Course are executed)		
Impatient Manral Health Care	Covered - 50%	Covered - 50% after
		deductible
	Unlimited days	
Inputiont Substance Abuse Treatment	Covered - 50%	Covered - 50% after
		deductible
	Unlimited days, up to \$15,000 annual, \$30	0110 lifetime maximum
Outpatient Mental Health Care		1

NOV. 13. 2007 9: HAM KELLEK THOMA PO	Cuvered - 50% NU. 4	/ U / / / Covered ~ 50% after deductible
Physician's Office	Covereil - 50%	Covered - 50% after deductible
Ourpatient Substance Abuse Treatment - in	Covered - 50%	Covered - 50% after deductible
approved facilities	Up to the state-dollar amount which	h is adjusted annually
Other Services	 -	
Outpatient Diabetes Management Program (ODMP)	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
Allergy Testing and Therapy	Covered - 100%	Covered – 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
Chisopractic Spinal Manipulation	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after deductible reimbursed to 80% after deductible
	Up to 24 visits per cale	endar vear
Outputient Physical, Speech and Occupational Therapy - Facility and Clinic	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 100% coverage	Covered - 80% after
- Physician's Office - excludes speech and occupational therapy	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after

deductible reimbursed to 80%

after deductible

Covered - 80%

Covered - 80%

Covered - 50% after deductible

A combined 60-visit maximum per calendar year for physical therapy in the outpatient department of a hospital as well as in the physician's office

Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to

Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to

100% coverage

100%coverage

Covered - 50%

Deductible, Copays and Dollar Maximums

Durable Medical Equipment

Private Dury Nursing

Prosthetic and Orthotic Appliances

Note: Services from a provider for which there is no PPO network and services from a non-network provider in a geographic area of Michigan deemed a "low necess area" by BCBSM for that particular provider specialty are covered at the in-network benefit level. If you receive care from a nonparticipating provider, even when referred, you may be billed for the difference between our approved amount and the provider's charge.

Deductible	\$2,500 per member. \$5,000 per family	\$5,000 per member. \$10,000 per family per
	per calendar year, reimbursed down to	calendar year, reimbursed to \$250 per Member,
	S0 per member, S0 per family	S500 per family
	Note: Deductible waived if service is	Note: Out-of-network deductible amounts also apply
	performed in a PPO physician's office.	toward the in-network deductible.
Copays		
Fixed Dollar Copays	520 office visits and \$50 for emergency room visits	\$50 for emergency room visits
- Percent Copays	20% for general services, waived if service	40% for general services and 50% for mental health
	is performed in a PPO physician's office,	care, substance abuse treatment and private duty
*	and 50% for mental health care, substance	nwsing
<u> </u>	abuse treatment and private dury nursing	
Copay Dollar Maximums		
Fixed Dollar Copays	None	None
 Percent Copays — excludes mental health care. 	\$2,500 per member, \$5,000 per family	\$5,000 per member, \$10,000 per family per
substance abuse treatment and private duty	per calendar year, reimbursed down to \$0	calendar year reimbursed to \$2000 per member
nursing copays	per member, 50 per family	and S4000 per family
		Note: Out-of-network copays also apply toward the in-network maximum.
Dollar Maximums	\$1 million lifetime per covered specified organ transplant type and a separate \$5 million lifetime per member for all other covered services and as noted above for individual services	

^{*}Remember: to get reimbursed for deductibles and coinsurance you must submit a claim form and an Explanation-of-Benefits

Community BlueSM PPO Base Plan Benefits-at-a-Glance PPO 15 reimbursed to PPO 10 *Highlighted areas are reimbursed

In-Network

Out-of-Network

Covered - 60% after

deductible

Therapeutic Radiology

Health Maintenance Exam - includes chest X-ray, EKG and select lub procedures	Covered - 100%*, one per calendar year	Not covered
Gynecological Exam	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Pap Smear Screening - lahoratory and puthology services	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not covered
Well-Bahy and Child Care Visits	Covered - 100%*	Not covered
	+ 6 visits, birth through 12 months	
	6 visits, 13 months through 23 months	1
	2 visits, 24 months through 35 months	
	- 2 visits, 36 munths through 47 months	
	A 1 visit per birth year, 48 months through use 15	
mmunizations	Covered - 100%, up through use 16	Not covered
Fecal Occult Blood Screening	Covered - 100%; one per calendar year	Not covered
Flexible Sigmoidoscopy Exam	Covered - 100° 5°, one per calendar year	Not covered
Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) Screening	Covered = 100%, one per calendar year	Vot dovered
Mammography		,
Mammography Screening	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%	Cuvered - 60% after
	מסעפומעפ	deductible
	One per calendar year, no use restrictions	
Physician Office Services		
Office Visits	Covered - \$20 reimbursed to \$15	Covered - 60% after
22,100 1,540	GOARIGE - PED 1611/Ambar m 212	deductible
Durpation) and Home Visits	Covered - 80% after deducable reimburge to 90%	Covered - 60% after
	COVETREE	deductible
Office Consultations	Covered - 520 reimbursed to \$15	Covered - 60%
		after deductible
		Must be medically
		necessary
Jrgent Care Visits	Covered - S20 reimbursed to S15	Covered ~ 60%
DIESHIC CALC A 17172	Coveren - 350 tellularized to 313	efter deductible
,		Must be medically
	1	MOST DE MEMORIA
	<u> </u>	Heressan (
		,
Emergency Medical Care		
Hospital Emergency Room	Covered - 550 copsy, waived if admitted or for	Covered - \$50 capsy,
	an actidental injury	waived if admitted or for
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>	an accidental injury
Ambulance Services - medically necessary	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%	Covered - 80% after
•	coverage ·	deductible reimbursed to
		90% coverage
Diagnostic Services		
aboratory and Pathology Services	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%	Covered - 60% after
	COVERDE COVERDE	deductible
Diagnostic Tests and X-rays	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%	Covered - 60% after
ADurrier (PST min V.1912)	coverage	deductible
·	1 74 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	AAAAAIIA1A

Maternity Services Provided by a Physician		
Prenaial and Postnalal Care	Covered = 100% Covered = 60	% after
	deductible	
	includes care provided by a certified	
	nurse midwife	
Delivery and Nursery Care	Covered = 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% Covered = 60°	% after
	coverage deductible	
	included a deligram marity had been a motified time a mate	العنائد

Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%

Semiprivate Room, Inpatient Physician Care, General Nursing Care, Hospital	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	THE POST OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF THE
Services and Supplies	сочеладе	deductible
Note: Non emergency services must be rendered in a participating hospital.	Untimited days	
Impatient Consultations	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 9	deductible
Chemotherapy	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 9	Covered - 60% after deductible
Skilled Nursing Care	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 9 coverage	0% Covered - 80% after deductible reimbursed 90% after deductible
	Up to 120 days per calendar year	
Hospice Care	Covered - 100% Limited to dollar maximum which is adjusted periodically by the state	Covered – 100%
Home Health Cure - Unlimited Visits	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 9 coverage	0% Covered – 80% after deductible reimbursed i 90% after deductible
Home Infusion Therapy	Covered – 80% after deductible reimbuse to 9 toverage	
Surgical Services	In-Network	Out-of-Network
Surgery - includes related surgical services	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% coverage	Covered - 60% after
Presurgical consultations — with a doctor of medicine, osteopathy, podiany of an	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after
Voluntary Sterilization	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% coverage after deductible	Covered - 60% after
Iluman Organ Transplants	30% coverage and ocubening	deductrble
Specified Human Organ Transplants - in designated facilities only, when	Covered - 100%	Covered - in designated
coordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant Program (800-242- 3504)	Limited to \$1 million lifetime maximum per	facilities only member per transplant type fo
	transplant procedure(s) and related professiona Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to	
Bone Marrow – when coordinated through the BCBSM Human Organ Transplant Program (800-242-3504); specific criteria applies	20% coverage	Covered = 60% after deductible
Kidney, Cornea and Skin	Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% coverage	Covered - 60% after deducable
Mental Health Care and Substance Abuse Treatment		,
Inpatient Mental Health Care	Covered - 50% After Deductible	Covered - 50% after
	Unlimited days	
mpatient Substance Abuse Treatment	Covered – 50% After Deductible	Covered - 50% after deductible
	Unlimited days, up to \$15,000 annual, \$30,	000 lifetime maximum
Out Patient Mental Health Care	•	
Facility and Clinic	Covered - 50% After Deductible	Covered - 50% after
Physician's Office	Covered - 50% After Deductible	Covered – 50% after deductible
Outpatient Substance Abuse Treatment - in	Covered - 50% After Deductible	Covered - 50% after
approved facilities	Up to the state-dollar amount which	
Other Services		·
Outpatient Diabetes Management Program (ODMP)	Covered - 80% after deducable reimburse to 90% coverage	Covered - 50% after deductible
Allergy Testing and Therapy	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after deductible
Chiropractic Spinal Manipulation	Covered - 100%	Covered - 60% after deductible

	deductible
Covered - 90% after Deductible	Covered - 60% after deductible
A combined 60-visit maximum per calend in the outputient department of a hospital office	dar year for physical therapy as well as in the physician's
Covered = 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% coverage	Covered - 80% reimbursed to 90% after deductible
Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%coverage	Covered - 80% reimbursed to 90% after deductible
Covered - 50% after deductible	Covered - 50% after deductible
	A combined 60-visit maximum per calent in the outpatient department of a hospital office. Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90% coverage. Covered - 80% after deductible reimburse to 90%coverage.

Deductible, Copays and Dollar Maximums

Note: Services from a provider for which there is no PPO network and services from a non-network provider in a geographic area of Michigan deemed a "low access area" by BCBSM for that particular provider specialty are covered at the in-network benefit level. If you receive care from a nonparticipating provider, even when referred, you may be billed for the difference between our approved amount and the provider's charge.

Deductible	S2.500 per member. S5.000 per family per calendar year, reimbursed down to S250 per member, S500 per family Note: Deductible waived if service is performed in a PPO physician's office.	S5,000 per member. \$10,000 per family per calendar year, reimbursed to \$500 per Member, \$1000 per family Note: Our-of-nerwork deductible amounts also apply toward the in-network deductible.
Copays - Fixed Dollar Copays	\$20 office visits reimbursed to \$15 and \$50 for emergency room visits	S50 for emergency room visits
- Percent Copays	20% for general services, waived if service is performed in a PPO physician's office, and 50% for mental health care, substance abuse treatment and private duty nursing	40% for general services and 50% for mental health care, substance abuse treatment and private duty nursing
Copay Dollar Maximums Fixed Dollar Copays	None	None
Percent Copays – excludes menual health care, substance abuse treatment and private duty nursing copays	\$2.500 per member, \$5,000 per family per calendar year, reimbursed down to \$500 per member, \$1000 per family	\$5,000 per member. \$10,000 per family per calendar year reimbursed to \$4000 per tnember and \$8000 per family Note: Out-of-network copays also apply toward the in-network maximum.
Dollar Maximums	51 million lifetime per covered specified organ transplant type and a separate \$5 million lifetime per member for all other covered services and as noted above for individual services	

^{*}Remember: to get reimbursed for deductibles and coinsurance you must submit a claim form and an Explanation-of-Benefits



Blue Preferred Rx Prescription Drug Coverage with \$15 Generic/\$30 Brand Name Fixed Dollar Copay Benefits-at-a-Glance

Network Pharmacy

Non-Network Pharmacy

Covered Services

Federal Legend Drugs	Covered - 100% less plan copay	Covered - 75% less plan copay
State-controlled Drugs	Covered - 100% less plan copay	Covered - 75% less plan copay
Needles and Syringes - dispensed with insulin	Covered - 100% less plan copay for insulin	Covered - 75% less plan copay for insulin
Mail Order Prescription Drugs – up to 90-day supply of medication by mail from Merck-Medic Rx Services	Covered - 100% less plan copay	Not covered

Copays

Generic Drugs	SIS for each generic drug	\$15 for each generic drug
Brand Name Drugs	\$30 for each brand name drug	\$30 for each brand name drug
Out-of-Network Sanction	Not applicable	25% plus applicable copay
Mail Order Prescription Drugs (Rider MOPD)	Copay for up to a 34 day supply: \$15 for each generic drug; \$30 for each brand name drug	Not applicable
	Copay for a 35 to 90 day supply: \$15 for each generic drug; \$30 for each brand name drug	

Note: A network pharmacy is a Preferred Rx pharmacy in Michigan or a Medico Health Prescription Solutions pharmacy outside Michigan. A non-network pharmacy is a pharmacy NOT part of the Preferred Rx or Medico Health networks.

This is intended as an easy-to-read summary, it is not a contract. Additional limitations and exclusions may apply to covered services, or an official description of benefits, please see the applicable Blue Cross Blue Shield approved amount, less any applicable deductible under copay amounts required by the plan. This coverage is provided pursuant to a contract entered into in the state of Michigan and shall be construed under the jurisdiction and according to the laws of the state of Michigan.

COUNTY OF HILLSDALE, HILLSDALE COUNTY
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY, HILLSDALE COUNTY
CLERK, HILLSDALE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS,
HILLSDALE COUNTY TREASURER, HILLSDALE COUNTY
DRAIN COMMISSIONER, AND HILLSDALE COUNTY SHERIFF

-and-

MICHIGAN PUBLIC EMPLOYEES, SEIU LOCAL 517M

EMPLOYERS' PACKAGE PROPOSAL

1. Eliminate Article 2, Section B(1)(b) (page 3).

RELEER THOMAS TO

- Revise Article 6(B) (page 9) to read as follows:
 - If a timely request for arbitration is filed by the Union or the Employer, the parties to this Agreement shall select, by random draw, one of the following arbitrators, who shall decide the matter:

Barry Brown Mark Glazer Anne Patton.

Each party shall pay the expenses, wages, and any other compensation of its own witnesses and representatives.

by the department head

3. Revise Article 12, Section E(2) (page 16) to read, "Said leave may be granted for a maximum of one year, but may be extended by agreement between the employee and the department head."

4. Add the following as the sixth sentence in Article 14, Section A (after the parentheses) (page 18): "This payment will be made by a check separate from the employee's paycheck." Union withdraws its proposal for a separate check for longevity pay under Article 21.

5. Clarify Article 24 (page 28) by adding the following: "Upon completion of the probationary period, the employee shall enroll in the Retirement Program."

the applicable retirement plan,

The \$3.28-07

All 3-78-0,

ARTICLE 14 SICK LEAVE AND MEDICAL LEAVE

Section A. Commencing with the date of this agreement, each non-probationary employee shall have the number of sick leave days that they have accumulated while working for the County of Hillsdale available to them not to exceed thirty (30) in number. Sick leave shall thereafter accumulate at the rate of one (1) day per month. On the first (1st) regularly scheduled payday after December 1, 2007, and on the first (1st) regularly scheduled payday after December 1 of each following year this Agreement is in effect, any employee who accumulates more than thirty (30) days by not using their accrued sick leave during the year shall be paid at the current year's hourly rate for all such days and portions thereof exceeding thirty (30) days which have been accumulated and are unused as of December 1 of the current year. [Example: The employee has accumulated thirty (30) days by December 1 of the previous year and accumulates twelve (12) days by December 1 of the current year and of these he/she uses two (2). On the first regularly scheduled pay after December 1 of the current year, he/she will be paid for the ten (10) unused sick days at his/her current rate of pay.]

Note: The rest of ARTICLE 14, Section A remains unchanged.

This payment will be
neade by a check Seperate

brom the employee's regulary

Schooled paychock.

A 3.28.09 Allow 3.28.09